
U"lUd N!ftlo"s

GENERAL
ASSEMBLY
roRTY-.jECOND SESSION

OJIkilll R.corrh·

SIXTY COIIMiTTU.
ltd ..eUn9

held on
Tue.cs.y, II Septe~t 1987

.t 10 ••••
New ~t)rk

S~ RBCORD or TU 3td IIDTINO

Chairman. M£. AZZAROU~ (Libyan Arab J.aahlriya.

BLBCTIOH or TU RAPPOR'r.BUR

ORGANIZATION OF WORK

AGBNDA ITEM 13;1, RBPORT OF THE UNITED NATIONS ooeuuSSION OH INTsANATIONAL TRADB
LAM ON THE WORK or ITS TWENTIETH SBSSION

---------
-nit rKord 11 IUbjlcllO tOl'TtClkJn. Correthonl Iboukt be IIftI under Ihe ,IIMlUN of. mlmber of thl .....

...... <OMernod ..dtl..... ...... of IIw .,. -f ,..bI/<Y'I/.. 10 .... Chltl of ... 0IIIc1ll ...... IIdlri.. _kin.
roon" DC2-1~. 2 United Nadont Piu., and IncOl"pOl'Wd In I copy of tht rte:otd.

Corrwc:llons will be Illuod Ifter the end of the le..iCHI, in I ICplf.1t rllClde for ueh Cumminee

87-55741 05358 (El

Dutr. GlNBRAt.
A/C.6/U/SR.l

19 Septeaber 1987
ENGLISH

ORIGINAL' FRENCH
I •..



A/C.6/42/SR.3
Bnglish
P~9. 2

The meeting was called to order at 10.15 a.m.

BLECTION OF THE RAPPORTEUR

1. ~r. CULLEN (ArgentinA), apeaking on behalf of the Latin American Group,
nominAted Mr. Kenneth McKenzie (Trinidad ~nd TObago) for the position of Rapporteur.

2. Mr. McKenzie (!rinidad and Tobago) waa elect~d Rapporteur by acclamation.

ORGANIZATION OF WOIUC (Ai'C.6/42/h A/C.6/42/L.l)

3. The CHAIRMAN suggested that the Committ.e should re-establish an open-ended
working group to review the complete draft Body of Principles for the Protp.ction of
All Peraons under Any Form of Detention or Imprisonment, in accordanC$ with General
Assembly decision 41/418, and the Sub-Committee on Good-Neighbourliness in
accordance with the A3sembly resolution 41/84. He also suggested that Mr. Treves
(Italy) should be reappointed as Chairman of the working group. If there was no
oojection, he would take it that his suggestions were approved.

4. It was so decided.

5. The CHAIRMAN said that the chairmanship of the Sub-Committee on
Good-Neighbourliness would be dealt with later.

6. He reminded members that the General Assembly had decided that no statement
made in a Main Committee would be reproduced in extenso. He also reminded them of
par&graph 13 (a) of General Asseffibly decision 34/401, under which a mandatory
deadline - 1 December - was to be set for the submission to the Fifth Committee of
Any draft resolutions with finanCial implications. He said that he would not call
meetings unless a sufficient number of speakers were on the list, but did intend to
~in meetings on time. In that connection, 'he pointed out that the General
Committee had recommended waiVing the requirement of a quorum. Finally, he called
on the members of the Committee to co-operate 80 that it could conclude its work no
later than 27 November.

AGENDA ITEM 132: REPORT OF THE UNITED NATIONS COMMISSION ON INTERNATIONAL TRADE
LAW ON THE WORK OF ITS TWENTIETH SESSION (A/42/17)

7. Mrs. PIAGGI (Chai~man, United Nations Commission 011 International Trade Law) ,
introducing the report of UNCITRAL on the work of its twehtieth session (A/42/17),
said that the session had been a landmark in United ~ations efforts to harmonize
~nd unify international trade law in two senses: first, it had coincided wit~ the
twentieth anniversary of UNCITRAL which, over the years, had consolidated its
position as the leading legal body wi~hin the United Nations system concerned with
in,ernational trade law, and, secondly, during the deyslon UNCITRA~ had completed
its consideration of two very important drafts: the draft Co~vention on
International Bills of EXchange and International Promissory Notes, and the draft

I ...



A/C.6/42/SR.3
Engli.h
P,.lge 3

Vln. Piaggi)

of a Legal Guide on Orawlng Up International Contract. f01 Con.truction of
Industridl Work8.

8. The purp08e of the draft Convention wa. to resolve the problem.. that aro••
when a negotiable instr.UI1lent u.ed in an international lending or financitlc)
operation circulated it, different countries where it wa. subject to different
legislation. In orde": to do 80, it would e.tabUsh an autonol1lOulB, indepen'mt and
self-sufficient regime governing the instruments u8ed in international tr.~e, whiCh
parties cOilld invoke lit their option and which would be reserved exclu.ively for
intern~tional operation.. The frequency with which negotiable instruments were
used in international trade ju.tified the 15 year. that had been devoted to the
project.

9. At its twentieth session, UNCITRAL had taken up, discussed and thoroughly
reviewed every article, finalized the t.xt in .ix lanquages and considered the be.t
procedures to follow for it. adoption at a convention and it. opening for
signature. A~ its ninet••nth ••••ion it h~ expr•••ed it. intention of
recomm.nding the General A••embly to adopt th~ draft as a convention without
altering its substanc.. Nev.rtheles., it had decided to s.e~ as.uranc. that the
Sixth Committee would acc.pt .uch a procedure before taking a final decision.

10. Although most delegation. had recognized the considerable merit. of the draft
and believed that r.-examination of it••ub.tance wa. not necessary, one d~legation

had explicitly reserv.d its position on the future of the draft Convention _hicl .
in its view, still had several Shortcoming. (aee A/42/17, para. 305).

H. Regarding the procedure for the adoptiol' of the text •• a (lonv.ntion, tll.
great majority of ~.1.gation8 would h&ve preferred to recomm.nd the G.neral
Assembly to adopt the draft in ite current form and o~en it for .ignatur., giv~n

the thorouqh scrutiny to which the draft had been .ubjected ove~ many years,
notably at the fift.enth ••sAion of the working Group on Int.rnational ~egotiabl.

Instr~inent8 a"d the ninet.enth and twentieth ••••ion. of UNCITRAL, and the
considerable expense that holding a diplomatiQ conference would entail. Even .0,
UNCITRAL had decided, in the int.re.t of con.en.ua, to recomm.nd to the G.n.ral
Assembly to consid.r the draft Convention with a vi.w to its adoption o~ any other
action it might wish to take (.e. A/42/17, para. 304) a. 4t wa., in any ca.e, up to
the General Assembly to decide what procedure to follow on the ba.is of the Sixth
Committee's recomm.ndatiQ~.

12. The 29 chapters of the Legal Guide dealt wi~h the vast rang. of legal probl.m.
that arose during all th~ various .tag•• of construction of indu.trial work., and
proposed solutions that struck a fair balanc. betw.en the intere.t. of the
parties. It would undoubt~dly be extremely ua.ful to all tho.e concerned with
drawing up contracts of that type, n.gotiatora from developing countries in
particular. To make the Guide eaai.r to a.e, UNCITRAL had reque.t.d the
Secretary-General to arrange for prompt publication in the .ix official languag.s
of the United Nations, l.nd to make it widely available. Th. nece.sary funds were
already available i~ the bucget. She d~.w the Committe.'s attention to the

/ ...



AlC. 6/U/SR. 3
BnqU.h
Pave 4

(Mu. Pi!iii)

deci.ion reproduoed in p~ra9raph 315 of the report (A/42/l7), and in partic~la, to
the invitation to the G.ner.l A••••bly to recommend and promote the Guide. She
rep~rted that UNCITJAL had wlahed to ~xpr.ss its gratitude to the Working Group on
the New International Economic Order and ita Chairman for the .xcellent results
they had produced, and wa. glad to report that there had been olose co-operation
betwe.n d.legations r.pre.entinq a wide variety of legal Bnd economic .ystems
d~r il\9 the elaboration of the Guide.

13. With regard to the .tatu. of the oonventions which were the outcome of the
work of UNCITRAL, it wa. encour-ving to learn that the United Nations Sale.
Convention would enter into force on 1 January 1988, that additional States ~uld

depo.lt their in.lrwaent. of ratification or aco•••ion during the current year, and
that .till other. were ..king progre•• towards ratification or accession. It could
rel80nably be fore..tln that that proces. would re.ult in real standardization of
the law on the internationAl .ale of goods. There had al~~ been po.itive
development. with re.pect to the United Nations Convention ?n the Carriage of Goods
by Se. (Haaburg Rule.), and it wa. probable that the nine ratifications or
acee.sions which wer. atill required for its entry into force would soon b6
obtained. The C~i.5ion had taken note with aatisfaction of the growing number of
jurilldiction. which had been enacted or were drafti,.", legiBlation basP.d on the
UNCITa~ Model Law on International Commercial Arbitration. Recognizing that
international trade law would not be trUly .tandar~ized unl••s the conventions it
prO\1uced were -ecepted by the majority of States, the COIllIllisaion had recOMenchd to
~he General A••eably to adopt a resolution (A/42/l7, para. 332) in which the
A.s.ably would request tho.. State. which had not yet done so to consider becoming
p.rtie. to tho.. convention••

14. In view of the ti...pent on con.ideration of the draft Convention on
International Bill. of Bxohange and International Promi.sory Notes and tho draft
Le9al Guide, it had not been po••ible to give thoroUCJh consideration to the future
direction of the Ca.-i••ion'. work, a. would have been logical on the occasion of
it. twentieth anniver.ary. Neverthele•• , .hort- and medium-term plans and training
and a••i.tance activitie. had been reViewed, and analysis of those activities
.hould be continued at t~e next ion, in the cour•• of Which the Commis.ion
would oon.iuet it. future progr of work and its ~ethod8 of work. While it was
true thllt the for.ulation of ·legal text. wa. - and mu.t continue to be - of
cardinal i~rtance, the effort. aimed at promoting their dissemination, adoption
.nd use were j~.t a. neee••ary, a. wa. the stimulation ~f training and as.latance
activitie., who.. u.efulne••, primarily for the developing countries, could no
longer be que.tioned. De.pite the Organization'. current financial cri.i., the
greate.t po••ible efforta au.t be made to promote the two la.t-mentioned aspects of
the work of the eo.ai••ion.

15. Undoubtedly, the Commi••ion'. efficient operation and its excellent reputation
were in large part due to the high quality of work of its secretariat. The legal
.urvftY., .tudie., ,eport. and project. which it required wwre not carried out by
.pecial rapporteur., a. wa. the ca.. in other bodies, but by the secreta~iat staff
it.elf. It wa. therefore di.turbing that 35 per cent of the secretariat post.

/ ...



A/C.6/42/SR.3
Bngli.h
P~. !

(Mr.. Pi"9i)

{emained var.ant, and it was to be hop~d that the coapet.nt bodi•• of tl ~

Organization would approve the recruitment of the peraonn.l needed to fill .11 the
posts, that was an essential condition if the C~l••ion was to be able to carry
out efficiently it. task of harmonizing and .tandardisi~ int.rnational trade law.
The Commission was grateful to the .ember. of the .ecretariat .taff, in particular
to those who had ~ontributed to the preparation of the draft Convention on
International Bills of rx~hange and International Promi.sory Note. and the draft
Legal Guide.

16. Finally, she expressed her conviction that the Sixth Caa.itt•• would provide
the Commission with valuable gUideline., L)t only in the re8Olulion. which the
General Assembly would adopt on the r.c~ndation of the Sixth C~itt••, but al80
in its debate., which would be reflected in the swaaary record. and in the report
to the A••embly. The members of ~he Sixth Committee could t. a••ured that th.ir
comments would be heard.

17. Mrs. TRAHAN (Canadl) said that the el~ction of a woman a. Chair..n of the
Commission was without precedent. She congratulated Mr.. Piaggi on the ca.pet..nc.
with which she had carried out her task, and hoped that other women would be called
on to preside over the work of the Commis.ion.

18. Canada had noted with great sati.faction the adoption of the draft Convention
on International 8ills of Exchange and International Promi••ory Note. and the draft
Legal Guide on Drawing Up International Contract. for Con.truction of Ih~u.trial

Works.

19. Canada was pleased to have taken part, in it. capacity a. ObS.rv.r, in the
work Which had led to the adoption of the above-••ntioned draft Conv.ntion, which
would certainly rank among t~e Commi••i~'. mo.t important achiev•••nt.. Th.
active participation of observer. in th~ work and the dwration of the work had made
it possible for any State. wi.hing to do 80 to take part in the foraulation of the
draft and hence to ensure adequate r.pre.entation of the principal legal .y.t....
The text finally adopted was the outcome of t~e work of the great••t world .xp.rt.
in the field and was the be.t po••ibl. compromi.. aimed at furth.r .tandardiaiD9
that area of international trade law. It wa. therefore qu••tionable wh.th.r the
final text could be improved through the holding of furth.r deliberation., .uch a.
a diplomatic conference. The final text .hould be .ubmitted to State. for
signature and ratification so that the international trade community could benefit
as soun as possible from that new legal in.trument.

20. The Legal Guide was an additional credit to the Commi••ion, and Canada wa.
pleased to have been closely involved in it. drafting fram the beginning. A
special session would be devoted to the Guide within the framework of the .y~.ium

on interna~ional trade law organized every year in Canada, and an orientation
meeting would be held with lawyer••pecialising in that field.

I ...



A/C.6/42/SR.3
English
Page 6

(Mrs. Trahan, C~nadal

21. All countries, tn particular the dev~loping countries, attached great
importance to training ~nd Assistance in the field of int~tnational trad~ law. The
Commission should give high priority to such actiVities and should recruit
competent and qua~lfic,i p.l~ons to carry them cut. The Commission should also
organize training symposia, and Canaaa would consider taking part in them either by
making contributions or through the participation of an expert. Canada hoped that
other countries would follow its example.

22. Car~da was pleased to learn that the Vienna Salea Convention would e«t.~r into
forcp. on 1 January 1988. Recognizing the efficiency of the Camniasion and aware uf
the importan~e of it~ work for the ad~ancement of international trade law, Canada
would continue to be closely involved in that work.

~3. Mr. FRANCIS (Jamaica), speaking undftr rule 110 of the rules of procedure of
the G~neral Assembly in hi* c&pacity as Chairman of the previous session,
congratulatee, on his own behalf and on beha1f of the Committee, the new Chairman
and the other ofiicers on their eJ4ction.

The meeting r08e at 11.15 a.~.


